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Public Works Department 

 
Working Together for a 

Better Tomorrow, Today 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 3 
for 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

ON-BOARD MOBILE VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM 
for 

 
CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA 

 
November 3, 2021 

 
 

TO: All Respondents  
 
RE: Questions 
 
 
PROPOSAL DEADLINE:  Wednesday, November 10, 2021 by 4:00 pm CST 
 
• Section B2, page 2, Vehicle Installation: “Installer will remove current on-board single 

camera system and return components to the City of Grand.”  
o Question: What would City of Grand Island like the Contractor to do with existing 

holes, if new cameras differ from existing locations? 
Whatever it required to ensure the vehicle is safe and operable. This can be determined at 
the time of installation and a change order issued if additional services are required. 

o Question: Will a cut & tuck of existing cabling be acceptable or is complete removal 
required? 
Cut & Tuck is acceptable.  

 
• Proposal Form, page 9, A. General Requirements: “Vendor shall possess 

licenses/permits required to perform required installations in the specified 
jurisdiction”.  
o Question: Please confirm what licenses/permits are required. 

To the City’s knowledge there are no specialized licenses/permits related for installation, 
etc. The intent of this inclusion was for an out-of-state vendor to ensure it has all required 
licenses/permits to do business across state lines.  It would be up to the vendor to identify 
what licenses/permits are needed.  

 
• Proposal Form, page 10, B. Software: “Software must allow on-premise access to live 

feed while vehicle is away from main facility.”  
o Question: Is City of Grand Island wanting live video while the bus is out on route?  
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Yes, but only on rare occasions.   
o Question: If yes, this will require a cellular data plan. Do vendors need to include 

cellular data plans in pricing, or will City of Grand Island be providing their own 
data plan? 
The Samsung Galaxy tablets on the buses do have Wi-Fi. Per Addendum 1 – “Wi-Fi is 
available on the bus – but will not be used regularly by the cameras.  Our routing 
software uses tablets, which have a tablet data plan directly from our software provider.” 

o Question: If vendor is to provide data plan, please advise where this pricing is to be 
included in the proposal. 
The vendor will not provide a wireless data plan. 

 
• Addendum 1, Page 2: “If Access Points already exist, where are they located? How 

many? What are the specifications for the Wi-Fi you currently have? Response: One (1) 
access point exists at 1016 N. Diers Avenue. 2G and 5G connections are available via 
ARRIS Touchstone TM1602 Router.”  
o Question: The information provided, ARRIS Touchstone TM1602 Router is a cable 

modem/router. A wireless access point is required for wireless downloading over 
wifi capability. In order to provide a turnkey solution, please confirm the following 
information:  

o  Does the City of Grand Island have an existing access point for use? 
No. 

o If City of Grand Island does not have existing access points for use with wireless 
downloading, please confirm if you would like for us to include in proposal.  
 If we are to include pricing for access point in proposal, please advise where this 

information is to be placed in bid submittal.  
“Section F – Price” states that prices quoted shall be net, including installation, 
transportation and delivery charges. This would indicate that all costs should be 
integrated into the per-vehicle price.  
 
If the vendor interprets the pricing requirement differently, then describe such in the 
Notes/Comments section.   
 

o Please confirm whether vehicles park in a garage or in open lot and provide 
location. 

Open lot – 1016 Diers Avenue Suite 119, Grand Island, Nebraska. 

• Addendum 1, Page 2: “How long are the buses on the road for during the day? Total 
time during the day? Response: 6-12 hours.”  
o Question: In order to ensure the proper amount of hard drive storage is included in 

the proposed solution, please provide the following information:  
 Please provide number of days per week to include weekends, vehicles are on the 

road. 
4-6 

 Please provide total number of recording hours required for video retention to 
achieve the minimum of 30-days storage. 
96 – 288 hours 

 Please provide what the resolution and frame rate settings need to be set at for 
each channel to retain the desired 30-days of on-board storage. 
720p 



3 
 

 

 
Please confirm if City of Grand Island currently has a server in place for use.  
o If no, please confirm if you would like us to include a server in our proposal and 

type of server desired (onsite or cloud hosted). 
No. Either are acceptable. Please also note Section E. Warranty & Training, which states 
the vendor will train agency staff on how to search and retrieve pre-recorded video from 
the server.  

o If we are to include pricing for server in proposal, please advise where this 
information is to be placed in bid submittal.  
“Section F – Price” states that prices quoted shall be net, including installation, 
transportation and delivery charges. This would indicate that all costs should be 
integrated into the per-vehicle price.  

 
If the vendor interprets the pricing requirement differently, then describe such in the 
Notes/Comments section.   

 
Please confirm that the City is responsible for all back-end infrastructure (facility 
wireless access points, etc.) 

Section A. – Background states “The agency awarded the contract will provide and install a turn-
key mobile IP based camera surveillance system.” And Proposal Form Section A - General 
Requirements states “The system shall include all necessary hardware and software for camera 
operation and recording without intervention.” 
 
The intention behind these descriptions was to communicate that the camera vendor will provide 
all front-end and back-end system requirements.  
 
For additional clarification, the transit agency using the cameras/software provides wireless 
internet, data plan, and computers.  All software and support systems necessary beyond this to 
make the camera system work are to be provided by the vendor.   
 
If there are annual fees, etc associated with this, which do not fit into the outlined price/per 
exhibit model, the vendor may use the comment section of “Section F – Price” to elaborate on 
such.  
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